
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Monday, February 8, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
40 East Center Avenue 

Village Hall Board Room 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25, 2016 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  

 
4. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen (15) minutes during this item for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board of Trustees on any matter not listed 
on the agenda.  Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes. 
 

5. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees will entertain requests from anyone present on the order of 
business to be conducted during the Village Board Meeting. 
 

6. VILLAGE FINANCE REPORT 
 

a) Warrant Report for February 1-15, 2016 and January 2016 Payroll Expenditures 
 

7. VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

a) A Report Concerning the Electronic Storage and Disposition of Certain Village Records 
 

8. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
9. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

10. ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Please note all correspondence was delivered to the Village Board of Trustees in the Informational Reports 
on January 22 and 29, 2016. 
 

11. A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE REGULAR MEETING DATES AND COMMITTEE-OF-THE-
WHOLE MEETING DATES FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – February 8, 2016 
 

Page 2 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

12. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING 
THE OPERATION OF LEAF BLOWERS AND POWERED LAWN EQUIPMENT 
 

13. TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

R. Drew Irvin 
Village Administrator 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting 
and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the 
meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator, at 234-0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake 
Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Village President O’Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Lake Bluff Village Hall Board 
Room, and Village Clerk Aaron Towle called the roll.  
 
The following were present: 
 
Village President:  Kathleen O’Hara 
 
Trustees:   Barbara Ankenman 
    Steve Christensen 

Mark Dewart 
Eric Grenier 
John Josephitis 

    William Meyer   
 
Also Present:   Aaron Towle, Village Clerk 

Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
Peter Friedman, Village Attorney 

    Susan Griffin, Finance Director 
    David Belmonte, Police Chief 
    Michael Croak, Building Codes Supervisor  
    David Graf, Fire Chief 
    Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator (A to VA)  

Franco Bottalico, Administrative Intern 
  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President O’Hara led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 
 
Trustee Josephitis moved to approve the January 11, 2016 Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes as 
presented.  Trustee Christensen seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

4. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

President O’Hara stated the Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen minutes for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board on any matter not listed on the 
agenda.   
 
Ms. Robin McAfee commented on the downtown design guidelines for Central Business District Blocks 
Two and Three and expressed concern for allowing attached multi-family units at a greater density and 
height than what is currently existing along E. North Avenue. 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting January 25, 2016 

2 
 

 
President O’Hara stated the draft design guidelines for Blocks Two and Three are currently being 
discussed by the Joint Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals and Architectural Board of Review.  
A future recommendation to the Village Board may consider a zoning code text amendment, but density 
and height metrics should be in the design guidelines. 
 

5. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 

President O’Hara stated the Village President and Board of Trustees will entertain requests from anyone 
present on the order of business to be conducted during the Village Board Meeting. 
 
At the request of those present, Trustee Meyer moved to take Agenda Item #11 then return to the regular 
order of the meeting.  Trustee Grenier seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice 
vote. 
 

6. ITEM #11 – A RESOLUTION HONORING THE PUBLIC SERVICE OF FIRE DEPARTMENT 
MEMBER JOHN KRUMSEE 
 
President O’Hara read the resolution honoring the Public Service of John Krumsee and presented him 
with a framed copy of the resolution and a certificate from the Fire Department. 
 

Mr. Krumsee thanked the Fire Department and the Village Board for recognizing his service.  He stated 
the recognition is not so much about him as it is about management’s dedication to the organization that 
has resulted in retaining long term volunteers.  Mr. Krumsee stated it is great to be a part of a team that 
demonstrates pride in their work. 
 
President O’Hara stated the Village currently has the highest rated volunteer fire department on the North 
Shore.  
 
Trustee Dewart moved to adopt the resolution.  Trustee Christensen seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

7. ITEM #6A – WARRANT REPORT FOR JANUARY 16-31, 2016 EXPENDITURES 
 
President O’Hara reported expenditure of Village funds for payment of invoices in the amount of 
$445,513.00 for January 16-31, 2016. 
 
As such, the total expenditures for this period is in the amount of $445,513.00. 
 
As there were no comments from the Board, Trustee Ankenman moved to approve the Warrant Report.   
Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis and Meyer 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0)  
 

8. ITEM #7 – VILLAGE ADMINISRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Village Administrator Irvin had no report. 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting January 25, 2016 

3 
 

 
9. ITEM #8 - VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 
Village Attorney Peter Friedman had no report. 
 

10. ITEM #9 – VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT  
 
President O’Hara had no report. 
 

11. ITEM #10 – ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 
President O’Hara introduced the correspondence from the Informational Reports on January 1 and 8, 2016. 
 
Trustee Christensen moved to accept the correspondence as submitted. Trustee Dewart seconded the motion.  
The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

12. ITEM #12 – TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
 
There was no Trustee’s report. 
 

13. ITEM #13 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to adjourn the regular meeting.  Trustee Meyer seconded the motion and the motion 
passed on a unanimous voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
R. Drew Irvin      Aaron Towle 
Village Administrator     Village Clerk 

























































 

 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
        Agenda Item: 7a 

 
 
Subject: 

REPORT CONCERNING THE ELECTRONIC STORAGE AND 
DISPOSITION OF CERTAIN VILLAGE RECORDS 

  
Action Requested: ACCEPTANCE OF THE REPORT (Voice Vote) 
  
Originated By: VILLAGE STAFF 
  
Referred To:  VILLAGE BOARD 
 
Summary of Background and Reason for Request: 
 
Village Staff continues to work with the Records Management Section of the Illinois State 
Archives to obtain the necessary approval to convert paper records to electronic files and to 
dispose of certain Village records. The Records Management Section of the Illinois State 
Archives is responsible for assisting local government agencies with the disposal of records.  In 
Illinois, no public record may be disposed of without State approval.  Attached is a list of Village 
documents that Staff plans on submitting to the State seeking approval for disposal.  All of these 
documents have exceeded the required holding period and the Village Board agenda packages 
have been converted to electronic files. This matter is being presented for the Board’s 
information and if there are no objections to the provided list, Village Staff will coordinate the 
appropriate disposal of the hard copy of the documents. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

 List of the Village Records Proposed for Disposal. 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  Acceptance of the Report. 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 2/8/2016 
 
 
 



BOARD PACKAGES Inclusive Dates
Employee Time Cards 1995 Basement
Vehicle Sticker Applications 2010 Basement
Bank Statements/Recon. Forms/Cancelled 
Checks/Voucher Copies FY1991-1992 Basement
EPA Waer Data Analysis 12/1987 thru 5/1993 PW
Employee Time Cards 1996 PW
Cancelled Cecks 1937 PW
Bank Reconciliations FY07-08 PW
Water Billing Ledger 10/15/93 to 10/20/00 PW
Utility billing Paymens/Cash Distribution Receipts FY02-03; FY03-04 and FY04-05 PW
Payroll Register 1998 PW
Social Security Record 1954-1965 PW
Cash Receipts FY77-78 and 1967 PW
Tax Bill 88/89/90 PW
VB/PC 2004 to 2005 PW (Need to be scanned)
HPC/ABR/VB/PC Agenda Packets 2010 VH by my Desk

Proposed Village Records for Disposal by the State of Illinois



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
             Agenda Item: 11 

 
 
 
Subject: 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE REGULAR MEETING DATES 
AND COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE MEETING DATES FOR THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

  
Action Requested: ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION (Voice Vote) 
  
Originated By: VILLAGE STAFF 
  
Referred To:  VILLAGE BOARD 
 
Summary of Background and Reason for Request: 
 
Illinois Statutes require the Village Board to provide notice of the regular schedule of meetings.  In 
keeping with past practice, the proposed schedule establishes the Regular meeting of the Village Board 
for 7:00 p.m. on the second and fourth Monday of each month.  Please note there is only one meeting 
scheduled for October (Columbus Day holiday) and December (last meeting cancelled due to 
proximity of the holiday season). Additionally, the proposed schedule also includes COW meeting 
dates for the same night as the Regular meetings of the Village Board.  The scheduled start time for the 
COW meetings is established for 6:00 p.m.  Please know that, as previously discussed, Staff will (i) 
continue to hold “significant” COW meetings in the Public Safety Building Community room and (ii) 
provide cancellation notices (in the event that there is a lack of business for upcoming meetings). 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
 A copy of the Resolution establishing the regular meeting dates for the Board of Trustees. 

 
Village President’s Recommendation:  Adoption of the Resolution. 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Adoption of the Resolution.  
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 2/8/2016 
 
 



 
                  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE REGULAR MEETING DATES AND COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MEETING DATES FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 5, Section 120/2.03 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (1992) requires public notice to be 
given of all meetings of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said Statutes require that such notice be given at the beginning of each calendar or fiscal year. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS that the Regular Meetings of the Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff, Lake County, Illinois, for the Fiscal Year commencing May 1, 2016, be and the 
same are hereby scheduled on the following dates.  All regular meetings shall take place at the Village Hall, 40 E. Center 
Avenue, Lake Bluff, Illinois, at 7:00 p.m., unless otherwise provided. 

  
May 9, 2016 
May 23, 2016 
June 13, 2016  
June 27, 2016  
July 11, 2016              
July 25, 2016 
August 8, 2016 
August 22, 2016 
September 12, 2016 
September 26, 2016 
October 24, 2016 

November 14, 2016 
November 28, 2016 
December 12, 2016 
January 9, 2017 
January 23, 2017 
February 13, 2017 
February 27, 2017          
March 13, 2017 
March 27, 2017 
April 10, 2017 
April 24, 2017 

                                     
Committee-of-the-Whole Meetings shall take place at the Village Hall, 40 E. Center Avenue, Lake Bluff, Illinois, at 6:00 
p.m., unless otherwise provided. 

 
May 9, 2016 
May 23, 2016 
June 13, 2016  
June 27, 2016  
July 11, 2016              
July 25, 2016 
August 8, 2016 
August 22, 2016 
September 12, 2016 
September 26, 2016 
October 24, 2016 

November 14, 2016 
November 28, 2016 
December 12, 2016 
January 9, 2017 
January 23, 2017 
February 13, 2017 
February 27, 2017          
March 13, 2017 
March 27, 2017 
April 10, 2017 
April 24, 2017 

 
PASSED this ___ day of February, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff as follows: 

 
AYES:  (0)   

 
NAYS:  (0) 

 
ABSENT: (0)    

      
APPROVED this ____ day of February, 2016. 
 

    
ATTEST:           ________________________ 

           Village President 
 

________________________                                                 
Village Clerk                                                                           



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
        Agenda Item: 12 

 
 
Subject: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE OPERATION OF LEAF 
BLOWERS AND POWERED LAWN EQUIPMENT 

  
Action Requested: FIRST READING OF THE ORDINANCE (Roll Call Vote) 
  

Originated By: VILLAGE STAFF 
  
Referred To:  VILLAGE BOARD 
 
Summary of Background and Reason for Request: 
On August 24, 2015 the Committee-of-the-Whole (COW) discussed complaints received by the Village 
from time to time regarding outdoor work (lawn mowing and other landscaping activities) that produce 
offensive noises in the early morning and evening hours. Historically, the Village has managed these 
complaints by working with contractors/property owners and using the current permitted construction 
times for regulatory purposes. On January 25, 2016, following its discussion over the course of several 
meetings, the COW directed Staff and Legal Counsel to draft an ordinance amending the Village’s 
nuisance regulations concerning leaf blowers and powered lawn equipment (Chapter 1 of Title 4 of the  
Municipal Code), including: 
 

i. Modifying the hours of operation permitted for any powered lawn maintenance equipment (leaf 
blowers, lawn mowers, trimmers, etc.) throughout the year to Monday through Friday, from 8:00 
a.m. – 6:00 p.m., and Saturdays/Sundays/Holidays from 9:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. (“permitted hours 
of operation”); 

ii. Exempting snow removal equipment, such as snow blowers, plows, power shovels, etc., from the 
permitted hours of operation; and 

iii. Allowing property owners performing landscape maintenance activities on their own property to 
operate between 6:00 p.m. and dusk. 
 

Additionally, the COW discussed the possibility of establishing registration requirements for landscape 
companies; however, the COW directed Staff to educate residents on best practices for hiring landscaper 
contractors, such as an adequate level of insurance, rather than creating a new licensing program. 
 
Village Staff will be in attendance at the meeting to answer questions from the Board. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
1. An Ordinance Amending Leaf Blowers and Powered Lawn Equipment Regulations; 
2. Summary of Regulations Regarding Outdoor Construction and Property Maintenance Activities; 
3. Summary of Landscaper Registration Requirements from; and 
4. Minutes of the August 24 and December 14, 2015 COW Meetings. 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  First Reading Approval of the Ordinance. 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 2/8/2016 
 


























